NATIONS CERD

Di str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD/ C/ SR. 1246
of all Forms of 5 March 1998
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-second session
SUMMVARY RECORD OF THE 1246t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 2 March 1998, at 3 p.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR

later: M. YUTZIS

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON

Fourteenth periodic report of the Russian Federation

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98- 15423 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1246
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWVMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 7)

Fourteenth periodic report of the Russian Federation (CERD/ C/ 299/ Add. 15)

1. At the invitation of the Chairnman, M. Abdul ati pov, M. Shahray,
M. Zorin, M. Kehlerov, M. Tsagolov, M. Chtcherbak, M. Ram shvili and
M. Tarasov (Russian Federation) took places at the Committee table.

2. M. ABDULATI POV (Russi an Federation), introducing the fourteenth
periodic report of the Russian Federation (CERD C/ 299/ Add. 15), said that his
Governnment was striving to put into practice the principle enshrined in the
Uni versal Declaration that all human beings were born free and equal in
dignity and rights, which was of great inportance for a nultinational country
i ke Russia. There had been ethnic discrimnation against individuals and
soneti mes even agai nst whol e peoples in his country's recent past. The

procl amati on of denocracy had freed the energies of peoples, and ensuring that
such forces were used creatively was not an easy matter. Hi s delegation would
endeavour to reply to the conments nmade by nmenbers during consideration of the
previous report in the course of the current dial ogue.

3. The previous year had been one of political stabilization. Mich had
been done to integrate the main political forces in the political process and
to reduce the influence of extrem sts. \While considerable progress had been
made in establishing denpocratic relations between nationalities on a firm

| egal footing, |egislation passed on relations between nationalities had been
i nsufficient, and 86 of the 270 | aws approved by the Parlianment had been
vetoed by the President. Admnistrative |aw had not yet been subject to
review, |eaving a considerable task ahead.

4, The Committee had stressed the need to strengthen the judicial system
There had in fact been a fundanental change in that area. The current budget
provided for a 50 per cent increase in allocations to the judiciary. Contro
of budget allocations would fall to a specially created judicial body com ng
under the Suprene Court. Legislation had al so been passed on the police and
judicial services. |In another inportant decision, control of the prison
system had been transferred fromthe Mnistry of the Interior to the Mnistry
of Justice.

5. The prohibition of racial discrimnation and the protection of the equa
rights of citizens irrespective of nationality, |anguage or religion were
essential for Russia's existence as a nultinational, multi-faith and
multicultural State with 176 nationalities and ethnic groups. Only the
federalist formof government, securely anchored in the Russian Constitution
could ensure cultural and political autonony for Russia's nationalities

in keeping with the constitutional precepts of equality and the

sel f-determ nati on of peoples and respect for the national integrity and
territorial inviolability of the Russian Federation as a whol e.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 3

6. Measures were being taken to ensure bal anced econonic devel opnent in
the various regions of the country and the sane standards of socia

services for everyone regardless of nationality or territory of residence.
President Yeltsin had recently reiterated the enphasis on the independent
devel opnent and aut ononous powers of the regions. Availing thenselves of
those powers, a nunber of republics and autononmous regi ons had adopted

| egi sl ati on guaranteeing the rights of national mnorities and indi genous and
smal | ethnic groups which even went beyond federal neasures and contai ned
speci al provisions preserving the distinctive culture of the peoples living in
their territories and their right to remain in their traditional settlenent
areas and create their own autononous cul tural associations. Such provisions
were clearly specified in the Constitutions of Buryatia, Bashkortostan

Dagest an, Kom, the Khanty-Mansi Autonombus Area and a nunber of other
constituent entities of the Russian Federation. An unprecedented effort was
under way to protect individual rights and freedons irrespective of
nationality, thereby conplying with the Conmttee' s reconmendati on at regiona
and | ocal Ievels.

7. Decree No. 909, pronulgated on 15 June 1996, had set priorities in the
area of relations anmong the nationalities and coordi nated the adoption of

| egislation at all levels. The National Cultural Autonomy Act, which had
entered into force on 17 June 1996, guaranteed the cultural rights of citizens
irrespective of place of residence and the right of national mnorities to

cul tural autonomy. The period under consideration had witnessed the creation
of 32 regional and 64 local cultural autononmous entities, as well as 2 at
federal level, the “Russian Germans” and the *“Russian Ukrainians”. |n 1998, a
federal social, econom c and cultural assistance programme was to be | aunched
on behal f of the Russian Gernmans, funded jointly by the Russian Federation and
Germany. Pursuant to article 7 of the Act of 18 Decenmber 1996, an Advisory
Council for National Cultural Autonomy had been set up within the

Russi an Government. A nunber of health, social services, educational

cultural, devel opment and environnental programes, sonme of themreferred to

i n paragraph 59 of the country report, were being inplenmented to support the
smal | indi genous peoples of the Russian North.

8. On 1 January 1997, the Russian Federation's new Penal Code had

entered into force, radically changing the relevant articles on crimna
responsibility for all fornms of discrimnation. Article 63 of the Code

provi ded that crines which had notives of national, racial or religious hatred
or ennmity were punishable by law. The crime of genocide had been included in
the Code for the first tinme (article 357). Activities ainmed at fonenting
national, racial or religious hatred or propagating exclusion, superiority or
inferiority of citizens for reasons of national or racial origin had al so been
made crimnal offences (article 282). 1In 1997, 21 persons had been charged
with commi tting such offences; 8 had been convicted and sentenced.

9. Legi sl ati on prohibiting fascist propaganda was close to conpletion, the
State Duma of the National Assenbly having approved in second reading a bil

to that effect in March 1997. A conmittee responsible to the President of the
Russi an Federation had been set up to halt the spread of racism racia

di scrim nation, xenophobia and anti-Semtism Steps were being taken to put
an end to discrimnatory practices by local authorities directed agai nst
persons of other nationalities, especially in connection with recruitnent.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1246
page 4

Since the presentation of the previous country report, four decisions had been
taken by the Constitutional Court relating to freedom of novenment and rul es
governing registration at tenporary and permanent places of residence. Al
such restrictions on the rights of citizens had been lifted. The residence
permt (propiska) system had been abolished. A recent decision of the Court
had |iberalized the rules on registration, including for refugees.

10. Concerning the tragic problem of Chechnya, the federal authorities were
pursuing their efforts to pronote the peace process and to find a politica
solution to existing problens in a spirit of flexibility, restraint and
willingness to conmpromi se. As early as 1993, the Governnment had signed a
protocol with the Chechen Parlianment on the delimtation of powers and a
speci al status for the Chechen Republic. Unfortunately, after signing the
protocol, the Parlianment had been dissolved by President Dudaev, and the
agreements had not been honoured. His Government was currently proposing a
twof ol d conprom se solution offering Chechnya the broadest possible autononous
status, with the Russian Federation losing a mninum of sovereignty. It was
unfortunate that the sole proposal by the Chechen | eadership had been not hi ng
I ess than full separation fromthe Federation. Mscow sought peace, whereas
t he Chechen | eadership continued to tal k about victory.

11. Parall el to the negotiating process, a nunber of programes were under
way for reviving the econony and nornmalizing |ife in Chechnya. A State

conmi ssion to rebuild the Chechen Republic had been set up. An interim

i nterdepartmental conmmi ssion of the Russian Federation Security Council had
been created for the devel opnent of the Chechen Republic and normalization of
the situation in the North Caucasus region. A nunber of government social and
econom ¢ programmes were being inplenented in Chechnya. An agreenent had
recently been reached on the paynent of pensions and subsidies in Chechnya
until the end of the year. President Yeltsin had issued a special decree to
ensure enploynment for refugees, including Chechens, from Chechnya. But any
solution to the Chechen problemrequired tine and patience.

12. G ven the short period involved, the progress nmade in Russia along the
path to denocracy had been considerable. National |egislation and practice in
the field of human rights protection were noving closer to internationa
standards, as evidenced by the ratification by the Russian Parliament on

20 February 1997 of the European Convention on Human Ri ghts and the

Eur opean Convention for the Prevention of Torture. Hi s Governnment would al so
be giving consideration to the European conventions on mnorities and | oca

sel f-governnent. Russia's problens could only be resolved by strengthening
denocracy and the rule of |aw and by protecting the rights of all people,
irrespective of their nationality. Hi s delegation was convinced that an open
and constructive dialogue with the Commttee woul d hel p the Russian Federation
in achieving the high standards enshrined in the Convention, and it was
prepared to reply in depth to any questions which nenbers might wi sh to ask.

13. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ (Country Rapporteur) said that the report had
taken into account a number of the points raised in the Comm ttee's concl uding
observations on the previous report. The Conmittee should proceed on the
basi ¢ assunption that Russia was a denocratic federal State based on the rule
of law. He appreciated the information provided on the ethnic make-up of the
popul ation of a country with so broad an ethnic and cultural conposition and




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 5

such a variety of nminorities, but asked what criterion had served as a basis
for the ethnic classification set out in Annex I. In sone cases, it seened
that no distinction was made between the concept of ethnicity or ethnic origin
and that of national group, as could be seen by the reference to Latvians,
Cubans, Slovaks, Italians, Anericans and so on. Wre the latter considered to
be ethnic groups? Could the Russian del egation further comment as to why a

di stinction was apparently nmade between asylum seekers fromthe Baltic
countries and the Commnweal th of | ndependent States, and those from

el sewher e?

14. He drew attention to the consequences for the population, notably the
i nstitutional vacuum and unenpl oynment, of the recent political changes, a
matter already raised by the Conm ttee agai nst Torture.

15. The Committee appreciated the fact that the Russian Constitution
establ i shed an adequate |egal franework for the enjoynment of political, socia
and economic rights. Article 55 of that instrument stated that the
enuneration in the Constitution of basic rights and freedonms shoul d not be
interpreted as a denial or dimnution of other universally recognized human
and civil rights and freedons. However, it nust be reiterated that, as had
al ready been acknow edged by the del egation during the presentation of the
previous report (CERD/C/SR 1133, para. 5), Russian legislation still lacked a
specific definition of racial discrimnation. Li kewise, M. Wilfrum the
previ ous Country Rapporteur, had already noted that article 19, paragraph 2,
of the Russian Constitution contained a provision whose scope was narrower
than article 1 of the Convention, because it referred only to equality of
rights. The sane point had been made in paragraph 137 of the Committee's
concl udi ng observations (A/51/18), which had also found that the | egislation
necessary for the inplenentation of article 19 of the Constitution had not
been adopted or effectively inplenented.

16. Al t hough Russian legislation did not strictly foll ow the wording of
article 4 of the Convention, it contained a general franmework which to sone
extent facilitated its application; neverthel ess, as pointed out in

par agraph 150 of the concludi ng observations, the Government had failed to
take concrete and appropriate measures to outlaw and conmbat all organizations
and political groups and their respective activities that pronoted raci st

i deas or objectives. He asked whether cases other than that involving the
Nazi terrorist “Werewolf Legion” could be cited in which charges had been
brought for fomenting national hatred, how the courts had applied the
legislation in force at the time and how Russian society had reacted to the
sent ences i nposed.

17. Under the new Penal Code, which had entered into force

on 1 January 1997, having notives of national, racial or religious hatred

or enmty was an aggravating circunstance in cases of homicide, infliction of
grievous bodily harm torture, etc., but did not constitute a separate

of fence, as required by article 4 of the Convention. Moreover

notwi t hst andi ng the wi de scope of article 282 of the new Penal Code, which
sought to protect the constitutional order and State security, it seemed that
certain offences referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the article would not be
puni shabl e under the article unless they specifically involved efforts to



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 6

arouse national or racial hatred or hostility or to demean national worth or
honour. He asked the delegation to comrent on that interpretation and to
expand on the concepts of constitutional order and State security.

18. Al t hough consi derabl e progress had been made in | egislative reform he
recommended that the State party should review the extent to which its

| egi sl ati on was consistent with its obligations under the Convention. He
conmended the inclusion of article 347 on the crine of genocide in the new
Penal Code and the |egislative work undertaken to ensure equality and

non-di scrimnation, as described in paragraph 24 of the report.

19. Wth reference to the right to nationality, it had been reported that
many refugees both fromother countries in the Cormmonweal th of | ndependent
States and fromfurther afield had restricted access to citizenship. Refugees
or applicants for asylumresiding in hostels and other acconmodati on centres
were registered on a tenporary basis and reportedly denied the opportunity to
apply for citizenship. |In particular, he inquired about the status of sonme
1,500 Azerbaijani refugees who had been resident in Mdscow since 1990.

20. VWi le progress in Russia's policy on nationalities was to be wel coned,
the existing |legal norns were still inadequate. He noted that the draft plan
of action for inplenentation of the Qutline of Russian State Policy on

Nati onalities covered such inportant provisions as the drafting of specific

| egi sl ation, neasures to stabilize the ethno-political situation in the
country and in individual regions, action to deal with the aftermath of
conflicts, notably in the Chechen Republic, and publicity for the action plan
He inquired about progress in inplementing the draft plan of action.

21. He al so asked for further information about the parlianentary hearings
of the Committee on Nationalities, particularly those relating to the
Gssete-1 ngush and Chechen conflicts, and the results of its work on draft
legislation to outlaw all fornms of racial discrimnmnation

22. He wel coned the entry into force of the National Cultural Autonomy Act
designed to ensure de facto equality of all ethnic conmunities and to offer

t hem guarantees of cultural autonomy, and the establishment of an Advisory
Council on National Cultural Autonony to pronmpte interaction between the State
and the communities concerned. He asked for additional details regarding the
Committee's functioning and achi evenents.

23. Stressing the need for nore resolute action to protect ethnic
mnorities, he noted that such minorities, including the Roma, in the Caucasus
and Central Asia had frequently been subjected to discrimnation and human
rights violations, even by those responsible for their protection. 1In the
wake of acts of violence agai nst Meskhet Turks in Central Asia in June 1988,
50, 000 nenbers of that conmmunity had been evacuated to other regions. Most of
those currently living in Krasnodar Territory in southern Russia had allegedly
been denied long-termresidence pernits and were not pernmitted to apply for
citizenship.

24. When the Comrittee had considered the twelfth and thirteenth periodic
reports, a nenber of the Russian delegation had referred to a special body
responsi bl e for inplenenting State soci o-econoni ¢ devel opnent and educati ona



CERD/ C/ SR. 1246
page 7

programes on behal f of the peoples of the Russian North. Local comrunities
had al so reportedly been created to preserve the culture of the Buryats in
Siberia, the Tatars and Bashkiris in the Urals and the Evens, Evenks, Tofal ars
and Chukchi in the North. He asked for a progress report on those measures.

25. In its concluding observations on the twelfth and thirteenth periodic
reports (A/51/18), the Conmittee had expressed concern at the increase in
raci st positions associated with nationalist novenments and certain politica
parties. Noting that in February 1997 the State Duma had passed in second
reading a federal bill banning the propagation of fascism he inquired about
the date of entry into force of the act and requested a copy of the text in
order to assess its conpatibility with the provisions of article 4 of the
Conventi on.

26. Referring to special order No. 8 of 31 October 1995, according to which
the norms laid down in an international treaty to which the Russian Federation
was a party took precedence over national |egislation, he asked whether that
principle had been applied in specific cases before the courts.

27. He noted that the Governnment Prosecutor's O fice was taking the Russian
Federation's obligations under the Convention with the requisite seriousness
and requested further information with a view to assessing the scope of its
activities.

28. He comrended the judicial reform neasures described in paragraphs 43
to 47 of the report and asked for a copy of the relevant provisions of the
Judi ci al System Act which had entered into force in Decenber 1996. The
training programmes for judges in matters relating to the exercise of
citizens' rights and freedons should include information on the obligations of
t he Russi an Federation under the Convention. Simlar training should be
provided for |aw enforcenment officers, given the frequent reports of bl atant
human rights violations by such personnel. Citizens of non-Slav origin or
appearance were allegedly subjected to frequent identity checks in Myscow,
sonetimes even two or three tinmes a day, and to the paynent of fines, brief
peri ods of detention and even ill-treatnent by the police. There were
substanti al residence charges for even very brief stays in Moscow. He asked
the del egation to conment on those all egations.

29. Referring to the Commi ssioner for Human Ri ghts nentioned in paragraph 50
of the core docunment (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add.52/Rev.1) and to the appointnent to that
post of M. S. Koval ev, he requested further information regarding his
functions and the action he had taken, particularly in cases involving racia
di scri m nation.

30. References in the report to the sentencing of guilty parties in racia

di scrimnation cases were appreciated by the Comrittee, but nore informtion
woul d be wel cone on nmeasures to counter racist propaganda such as the

puni shment and di sbandi ng of organi zations that engaged in the pronotion of
raci al hatred or incitenent to violence, in particular the National Republican
Party. He also asked the delegation to comrent on reports of anti-Semtic
statements and publications.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 8

31. Wth regard to the situation in the Chechen Republic described in

Annex 111 to the report, he conceded that sonme aspects of the situation |ay
outside the Comrmittee's scope, but submitted that all aspects were

i nterconnected and had inplications for the protection of human rights,
particularly those covered by the Convention, inasnmuch as obligations towards
groups characterized by their ethnic or national origin had not been honoured.
The Russi an Federation was a State governed by the rule of |aw and denocratic
principles. Chechnya was no longer in a state of arned conflict. The current
peace process nust focus on nornalization, chiefly through economc, socia
and political nmeasures, with a viewto creating a climte of nutual trust and
security conducive to respect for human rights. According to Annex |11
serious human rights violations were still being perpetrated. They were being
commtted on both sides. Sone 140,000 people were reported to have em grated,
claimng they could no longer live in the Republic. Amesty Internationa
reported indiscrimnate killings of civilians, detention wi thout trial
torture, ill-treatnent and extrajudicial executions. It had received reports
that armed Chechen opposition groups had been responsible for deliberate and
arbitrary killings, torture, ill-treatnent of prisoners and hostage-taking.
The Speci al Rapporteur of the Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts on extraj udici al
summary or arbitrary executions was concerned about the inpunity enjoyed by
those responsible for the human rights and international humanitarian | aw
violations comritted in the context of the conflict (E/ CN. 4/1997/60/Add.1).

In the light of those allegations, the Conmttee reiterated its request to the
conpetent authorities of the Russian Federation and the Chechen Republic to
take urgent steps to renedy the existing state of affairs.

32. Referring to the concern previously expressed by the Cormittee in its
concl udi ng observations, he requested further information on the conflict
bet ween | ngusheti a and GCsseti a.

33. The information provided on article 7 of the Convention was i nadequate
in view of the article's wide scope in the area of education, culture,

i nformati on and pronotion of understanding and tol erance between different
soci al strata. \While welcom ng the tendency for ethnic schools providing
instruction in the ethnic |language to expand in areas with a sizeable
non-nati ve popul ati on and the adoption of | anguage laws in republics such as
Khakassi a, Buryatia and Tatarstan that proclained the right of nationa
mnorities and small national groups to use their nother tongue
(CERD/ C/ 263/ Add. 9), he urged the State party to take further action in that
regard, reporting on progress to the Commttee.

34. Referring to paragraph 54 of the core docunent, he asked for nore
details on the reproduction of the texts of international instruments in

of ficial publications and the dissem nation of the Convention in Russian and
ot her wi dely spoken national |anguages. |In that connection, he drew attention
to paragraph 158 of the Conmittee's concluding observations (A/51/18)
concerni ng di ssem nation of the periodic report and concl udi ng observati ons
and the need to publicize the procedure of individual comunications under
article 14. He also asked for nore details about the establishnent of human
rights departnents in a nunber of institutes referred to in the core docunent.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 9

35. M. van BOVEN, conmenting on the great diversity of the Russian
Federation in terns of nationalities, ethnic groups and mnorities, said that
t he changeover froma tendency in the past to think solely in terms of
political blocs involved a major and highly stinmulating | earning process. The
Convention was of crucial inportance to so diverse a country as a neans of
conmbating prejudice and discrinm nation and al so for confidence-building. He
wel comed the Russian authorities' obvious determination to report regularly to
the Committee. However, he was not entirely satisfied with the structure of
the report, drawing attention to the Conmmittee' s reconmendation in the

previ ous concl udi ng observations that the next periodic report should be a
conprehensive one and that all concerns expressed in the observations should
be addressed. Mbdreover, the report was not in conformty with the
article-by-article approach reconmended in the reporting guidelines. He had
been unable to determ ne the extent to which the new Penal Code net the

requi rements of article 4 of the Convention. There was very little

i nformati on about article 6 concerning redress for victinms and reparations for
damages and article 7 concerning teaching, culture and information.

36. The report clainmed that account had been taken of the concluding
observations but in fact a selective approach had been adopted. He was unable
to see any followup to the recomendati on in paragraph 149 of the concl uding
observations regardi ng measures to ensure the devel opnent and protection of

| ess devel oped groups within the Federation. The sane applied to

par agr aph 150, which strongly recomrended that action should be taken to
out | aw and conbat organi zations and political groups that pronoted racist

i deas or objectives, and to paragraph 151 concerning the abolition of the
permt system The report had not provided the type of information requested
i n paragraph 156 on conplaints and court cases related to racial

di scrimnation and the decisions and judgenents handed down. The Comittee
had al so recomended that the State party should ratify the amendnents to
article 8, paragraph 6, of the Convention

37. He was grateful for the information in Annex Il and the ora
presentation regarding the situation in the Chechen Republic, but was
concerned about the patterns of inpunity referred to by the Special Rapporteur
on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions. As the delegation had
correctly noted, a long process of healing and reconciliation was necessary

but Annex |1l seened to divide the parties involved into the “good” Russians
and the “bad” Chechens. In so doing, it failed to reflect the spirit of
article 7 of the Convention. In connection with the situation in the

Chechen Republic, he drew attention to the Comrittee's Genera

Recommendation XXI on the right to self-determ nation, which clearly expressed
the view that international |aw had not recognized a general right of peoples
unilaterally to declare secession froma State, and wi shed to nmake it clear
that when the Conmittee raised i ssues of an ethnic nature, it was against the
background of that view

38. M. Yutzis took the Chair.

39. Ms. SADIQ ALI said it was inportant to recognize the difficulties the
Russi an Federation was facing as a nulti-ethnic and nulticultural society. It
had made strides in the political sphere, but in ternms of economic growmh, a
good deal of work |lay ahead. Russian reforms had affected children nost and




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 10

they were increasingly at risk, as could be seen fromthe reports of

wi despread honel essness, donestic violence, suicide, ill-health, placement of
children, including those with Iiving parents, in orphanages, juvenile crine
and child abuse. The root problem was the post-Soviet breakdown of famlies
under the inpact of poverty and shifting social nores. President Yeltsin had
recently acknow edged that market reforms had hit children particularly hard
and had promi sed to take action. She requested details of the progranmes
initiated.

40. Informati on was al so needed on the “fifth line” in internal passports
identifying a citizen's origin. Several Russian ethnic republics had demanded
its reinstatenent, while the Jewish conmunity had hailed its abolition
According to article 26 of the Constitution, every citizen had the right to
determ ne his State nationality. The issue seenmed to be conplicated: the
Tatarstan Constitution, for exanple, envisaged both Tatar and Russian
citizenship for its population

41. She asked for clarification of the claimthat mnority | anguages were
under the protection of the State as national property. It was reported that
State schools offering instruction in the indigenous nother tongue were rare
and that parents had been pronpted to send their children to schools where
only Russian was spoken. That was regrettable, considering the inportance
mnorities attached to their |anguages.

42. What inpact had oil devel opnent had on the traditional way of |ife of
the Eastern Khants, who were subsistence hunters and fishermen? O

extraction was now reportedly threatening their culture. Ws there any
Government strategy for the conservation of the land and culture of the Yugan
Khanty bi osphere reserve? Legislation on the |egal status of the indigenous
peopl es of the North had been proposed in the Duna but rejected by Parlianent,
as well as by the President. Had those peoples received any form of
conpensation for the | ands that had been taken away? It was reported that the
soci al and denographic situation of the indigenous peoples of the North and of
t he Russian Far East continued to deteriorate; one of five unenployed in
Russia was resident in the North, and half of all unpaid salaries was owed to
northerners. According to paragraph 59 of the report, small ethnic groups
were to receive special attention. What was the nature of that attention?

43. She al so wi shed to know about the relationship between the Russian
Federation and its constituent ethnically based republics. |In what respect
did the 1993 Constitution of the Republic of Tuva differ fromthat of the
Federati on? Wre the Russian inhabitants of Tuva, who accounted for

32 per cent of the popul ation, anpng those who had opted for the new
Constitution? Wat was the | anguage policy? Did they have greater economnic
and political independence? More information should also be provided about
the case of the Republic of Tatarstan, which had refused to disband itself and
had signed a treaty with President Yeltsin ceding extensive powers to the
Republic and allowing it to retain its own Constitution

44, VWhy had so many of the ethnic republics suspended Presidential Decree
No. 1.400 on their territories and voted agai nst acceptance of the Russian
Constitution? Mst of them had adopted their own Constitutions claimng
supremacy over federal law. Was it true that Chechnya had taken steps to



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 11

underscore its separate identity by replacing the Russian | egal code with
Islamic Sharia |law? Russia’s new Religion Bill seemed to violate the
Constitution, as it asked all religious bodies to register with the
authorities by 1999. Why had the State Party delayed in ratifying

I nternational Labour Organization Convention No. 1697

45. M. DIACONU said the Russian Federation was unique on account of its
mul ticultural and nmulti-ethnic nature as well as its size and socia
organi zation. It was a country in transition, with institutions and

| egi sl ati on proper to a denocratic systemand a stabilized market econony, but
there were sone renmining influences and nmentalities of a centralized system
and it faced both legislative and adninistrative problens of coordination

That was why nore factual information was needed on the situation of people of
different nationalities in the State party and on their access to public life,
econom ¢ and soci al benefits, culture and education. The State party was one
of the fewto have actually taken neasures in response to the Cormittee’s
recommendat i ons, exanples being the National Cultural Autonomy Act and
measures to strengthen the i ndependence of the judiciary. There was also a
policy for dealing with problens between different nationalities, as wel

as special devel opnent programes for ethnic groups, as outlined in

par agraphs 48 to 52 of the report. In some regions, however, such progranmes
were coming too late, and were ained at stabilizing the situation in the
aftermath of conflicts, such as in North Ossetia/ Al ania and | ngusheti a.

Experi ence in Chechnya denpnstrated that such neasures should be inplenmented
before the conflicts, in order to prevent them and not afterwards, to repair
t he damage.

46. Both the report and national |egislation used different ternms, such as
“nationalities”, “mnorities” and “ethnic groups”. What were the criteria for
di stingui shing between then? Did they involve nunbers, |egal systems, the
status of subject of the Federation, or autonony? How were those groups
recogni zed or forned, especially with regard to the individual right of each
person to determ ne and state his or her national identity, under article 26
of the Constitution?

47. He was puzzled by sonme of the statistics in Annex | of the report, which
sometines listed a single nationality under several headings. For exanple, it
listed Tatars, Crinean Tatars and Crineans. |If Crinmeans were not Tatars and

not Ukrai ni ans, then what were they? Jews were nentioned once generally, and
then again as Central Asian Jews and as Myuntain Jews. \What was the

di fference in | anguage, religion, culture and ethnic background between
Kar el i ans, Saam , Eskinos and peoples of the North? Wy were they sonetines
counted by region and not on the basis of their ethnic characteristics? The
special law to be adopted in anticipation of the Novenmber 1999 census shoul d
per haps take account of new data and the individual will of the popul ation

48. According to the annex, there were about 153,000 Gypsies in the
Federation. That was not a large minority, but throughout Europe the Gypsies
were confronted with many difficulties, and nore information would be

appreci ated. Legislation allowed State authorities to take nmeasures agai nst



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 12

individuals inciting racism Did such cases occur, and if so, how were they
resol ved? What neasures were taken when orders were issued to limt citizens’
rights on ethnic grounds, as nentioned in paragraph 40? The next report
shoul d contain nore specific informati on on manifestations by nenbers of
extrem st organi zati ons (paragraph 42), which were supposed to be prohibited
under the Convention

49. M. de GOUTTES said that the regul ar subm ssion of periodic reports
showed a commendable will for dialogue; many States parties did not submt
their reports as pronptly. The fourteenth report was an updati ng one, which
perhaps explained its brevity. He welcomed the State party’s declaration
under article 14 of the Convention, which had so far been made by only

25 States parties. The Russian Federation was al so encouraged to accept

i ndi vi dual conmuni cati ons under the European Convention on Human Ri ghts, as
the two procedures were conplenmentary. Wat were the prospects of that
docunent being ratified?

50. Par agraphs 17 et seq. of the report provided only Iimted information on
the application of the new Penal Code. Statistics, specific information and
practical exanples were needed regardi ng conplaints, prosecutions, cases,

deci sions and reparations in order to assess the extent to which the victins
of racismwere protected. The Committee had previously expressed concern over
the increase in racist positions associated with nationalist nmovenments, racist
attitudes towards Caucasi ans, especially Chechens, and expressions of
anti-Semtism

51. In becom ng a nmenber of the Council of Europe, Russia had decided to
suspend all executions, with the intention of abolishing capital punishnment
within three years. However, according to Amesty International and other
sources, executions were still being carried out. Was that true?

52. The Governnent Prosecutor’s O fice was supposed to check on conpliance
with laws banning discrimnation. According to paragraph 40, checks had been
made on the registration of political parties and public organizations and the
consi stency of their activities with their objectives. Could other exanples
be provided of investigations and neasures taken agai nst parties or

organi zations that manifested raci st tendencies?

53. The Committee had wel coned the establishnment of a special comr ssion on
human rights in 1993. Since then, however, Amesty International had reported
that the head of the commi ssion, along with several menbers, had resigned.
VWhat was the status of both the conmission and its head? What had been done
in response to the Conmittee s recommendati ons that judges, |awers and

magi strates should be trained in human rights and in interracial and

i nterethni c understanding and that such training should also be provided to

| aw enf orcement personnel and the mlitary?

54, M. Aboul -Nasr resuned the Chair.

55. M. GARVALOV said he was inpressed by the frank adnmission in the report
about the situation in Chechnya. He also welconed the detailed statistics on
the ethnic and linguistic conposition of the population; no other State party
had done as much. The new | egi sl ati on enacted since 1996 was al so i npressive;




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 13

the text of national mnorities |egislation should be made available to
Conmittee nenbers. The Conmmittee dealt cautiously with the probl em of
mnorities, and its approach to that problemvaried with each State party.

56. The report failed to follow the Committee's reporting guidelines, as had
the previous two reports. Insufficient information had been given on specific
cases of litigation concerning racial discrimnation. In such cases, what

sentences had been handed down and how had they been followed up?

57. If the Chechens wi shed to secede, he wondered how they woul d be
convinced not to do so. The Russian Federation was on record as not allow ng
uni |l ateral secession. The Conmittee, too, in its General Recommendation XXl
di d not condone unilateral secession of ethnic or mnority groups froma
metropolitan State party. Wat would be the outconme? According to statistics
fromthe 1989 census, 99 per cent of Chechens had said their nother tongue was
t hat spoken in their region, unlike sone other Russian ethnic groups, such as
the Bul garians, half of whom clainmed their ethnic |anguage as their nother
tongue while the other half clainmed Russian. He wondered whether that could
be due to the fact that unlike Bul garians, Chechens were |argely concentrated
in one particular territory. |If that were the case, he would wel conme

i nformati on on neasures to integrate dispersed peoples, such as the Bul garians
and Ukrainians. How, with regard to the Chechens, could the Federation fulfi
its obligations under article 7 of the Convention to pronote understandi ng and
har noni zati on anong racial or ethnic groups? Mre information should al so be
provi ded on inplenentation of article 7 of the Convention.

58. M. LECHUGA HEVI A said that he would |ike updated information on a
nunber of points. He wondered whether he was right in thinking that although
article 29, paragraph 2 of the Constitution prohibited discrimnation of any
kind in Russian society, it did not prohibit the existence of racist

organi zati ons as such or recognize participation in such organizations as an
of fence punishable by |law as stipulated in article 4 of the Convention

59. Par agraph 24 of the report referred to the State Duma Committee on
Nationalities and its work on a host of federal laws. However, it failed to
menti on what the outconme of the Comrittee's work had been, when its work woul d
cone to fruition, if it had not already, or what the |egislative neasures
woul d nean in practice. The sanme was true regarding the information given in
par agraph 27.

60. The Committee would be pleased to know of any devel opnents since the
second reading of a federal bill banning the propagation of fascismin the
Russi an Federation, as nentioned in paragraph 35, the extent of the probl em of
fasci st tendencies in the country and how they were being countered.
Informati on should al so be provided on the State bodies to conmbat fascism
referred to in paragraph 41 of the report.

61. More precise details were needed on the reference in paragraph 52 of the
report to the programme to deal with the aftermath of the Ingush-GOssete
conflict and how those peoples were being rehabilitated psychol ogically.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1246

page 14

62. What were the crimnal and psychol ogi cal pressures being brought to bear
on Russian and Russi an-speaki ng i nhabitants of Chechnya and what was meant by
the policy of “ethnic cleansing”, referred to in paragraph 6 of annex I11?

Simlarly, were authorities of the Chechen Republic or the Russian Federation
responsi ble for preventing and dealing with the mass violations of human
rights that were taking place in the Chechen Republic?

63. M. SHERIFIS appl auded the size of the del egation of the Russian
Federation and the regularity with which reports were submtted. The
fourteenth periodic report, which should be seen as an updating report, had
been conpl enented by the oral introduction, a copy of which m ght usefully be
circulated to nenbers of the Cormittee. The Russian Federation should be
commended for having made the declaration under article 14 of the Convention
However, the Conmittee would be interested to know how and if the Government
had taken neasures to informthe public of the right of individual petition
Informati on woul d al so be wel cone as to whether the Russian Federation had
initiated proceedings with regard to the anendnents to article 8, paragraph 6
of the Convention on the financing of the Conmttee.

64. In respect of articles 5 (d) (i) and 5 (e) (i), he asked how far freedom
of novenent and residence was respected within the borders of the Russian
Federati on, how the unenpl oynent situation stood and whether it was possible
to provide a breakdown of figures on unenpl oynent along ethnic |ines.

65. Further information was needed on the situation of “ethnic cleansing”
as referred to in paragraph 6 of Annex II1l. Was it true that “ethnic

cl eansi ng” anmounted basically to harassnment and intimdation or were nore
direct forms of violence involved? Paragraph 15 of the annex stated that
453,000 citizens of the Chechen Republic had left their hones between
Decenmber 1994 and August 1996 and that roughly 270,000 civilian victins had
been provided with tenporary acconmodati on between August and Septenber 1996.
What had happened to the others? He drew the delegation's attention to the
views expressed in the Committee's General Recomendation XXI (48) regarding
the fragnmentation of States

66. M. SHAHI wel coned the nulti-ethnic and nultinational conposition of the
del egation of the Russian Federation and what that inplied in terns of
cooperation and dial ogue with the Conmittee.

67. In Novenber 1997, a Seminar on the Role of the Internet with regard to
the Provisions of the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns
of Racial Discrimnation, organized by the H gh Commi ssioner for Human Ri ghts,
had recommended that the Conmittee should nake reference to the Internet and
its inplications for spreading racist and extrem st propaganda when
considering the reports of States Parti es.

68. The Sem nar had recogni zed the technol ogical difficulties involved in
controlling information circul ated on the Internet but had considered that the
Convention applied as much to electronic nedia as to nore traditional neans of
conmuni cati on. He asked whether there were Wbsites in the Russian Federation
devoted to extrem st propaganda, how |l egislation there could be used to
prevent that and if, in the absence of |egislation, neasures were envisaged to
deal with the probl em



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1246
page 15

69. The CHAI RMAN asked whet her the Internet could be controlled fromw thin
one particular country.

70. M. SHAHI said that |eading service providers at the Sem nar had

recogni zed the difficulties involved in controlling information received from
or circulated on the Internet. However, several countries had enacted

| egislation to prohibit racist propaganda on the Internet, providing for pena
sanctions for nationals who were found to have circul ated raci st propaganda on
the Internet, even when the Website was registered in another country, a ruse
that was often used to disguise the source of the propaganda.

71. M. YUTZIS said that clarification was needed of the distinction between
raci st acts and efforts to incite racial hatred “committed in public or
through the mass nedia” referred to in paragraph 19 of the report. The

del egati on should al so give an idea of progress in the |egislation nentioned

i n paragraphs 24 and 27 of the report and the schedule for inplenmentation. He
asked whether mnority groups would be involved in inplenmenting the

| egi slati on when it had been finalized.

72. He al so asked what percentage of gross domestic product would be
allocated to the range of neasures referred to in section IV of the report,
what sunms woul d be invol ved and how resources woul d be all ocated.

73. I nformati on woul d be wel come on a problemthat presunmably continued to
exi st for the Russian Federation, inherited fromthe former Soviet Union

i.e. the requirenment that people of Jewish origin who had emi grated to Israe
had had to surrender their passports before they left. The absence of

of ficial documents neant that a return to the Soviet Union and, subsequently,
t he Russi an Federation, had been and continued to be fraught with
difficulties.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p. m




